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. (gavel). . . I'd like to call to order the Council...Council' s Budget and
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
Finance Committee meeting for March 28, 2012 [sic] at the Paia Community Center Social Hall.
Good evening, everyone, and thank you for having us here this evening. At this time, I'd like to
yield the floor to Councilmember Mike White who will provide us with the introduction of the
Members and the Staff that are here supporting the Budget and Finance Committee.

ITEM BF-1: PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2013 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY OF MAUI
(CC 12-59)

COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Good evening, and thanks for coming this evening. Starting from my
far left, Bob Carroll, from Hana. And next in line from Wailuku, Mike Victorino. Almost
sounds like I'm calling the, the card for a fight, doesn't it, but...and next, next is from
Upcountry, Gladys Baisa. From Lanai, Riki Hokama. And our Chair from Kahului, Joe
Pontanilla. And our Council Chair, Danny Mateo. Elle Cochran from West Maui. And Don
Couch from South Maui.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Also with us we do have Staff people that's supporting the Committee this
evening. At this time, I'd like to introduce the Council Staff that are here. Scott Kaneshina,
Josiah Nishita, Clarita Balala, as well as Michele Yoshimura. We do have Executive Assistants
that support the various Council members that are here tonight. Lois Whitney, Troy Hashimoto.
Lois and Troy are Executive Assistants for Councilmember White. Susan Clements. Susan is
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the Executive Committee...Executive Assistant for Member Couch. And Arthur Suyama who is
the Executive Assistant for our Chairman, Chairman Mateo.
Tonight is your opportunity to provide us your comments on the Mayor's Proposed Budget for
the Fiscal Year 2013. Just a few ground rules. If you do have a cell phone, please turn it off or
put it on the silent mode at this time. For those of you that are providing public testimony, Chair
will provide you with three minutes with one minute to conclude. When you come up, if you can
state your name, organization that you represent. Once you're done, if you could stay at the
mike for a few seconds, Members may have questions for you. Be sure to speak directly into the
mike as we are recording all of the testimony that are being provided tonight. So with that, we'll
take the kids first. Alisha Summers? Followed by Nicole Nakagawa.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. SUMMERS: Hi. My name is Alisha Summers and I have been a Youth Alliance member for
about two-and-a-half years. Youth Alliance taught me to be a better leader and to give back to
the community. In fact, this past session we helped clean up the Marine Division Park in Haiku
to help make the park safe for children to play on. In addition, Youth Alliance exposed us to
numerous job occupations. In one session, we observed the agricultural work done in Kula;
however, my favorite Youth Alliance session this year was when we banded seabirds in Kihei to
help the DLNR. This was such an interesting experience that I would never have done if I was
not a Youth Alliance member. So in closing, I urge you to fund Youth Alliance so that they can
contribute to positively influence Maui's youth. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Nicole Nakagawa, followed by Kamalei Amadeo.
MS. NAKAGAWA: Aloha. My name is Nicole Nakagawa. I'm a 16-year old student at Hui Malama
High School. I have been going there since the beginning of this school year. I felt that
transferring to Hui Malama was a better option for me because of how small the school is. I felt
that I would have a harder time getting in trouble there than I did at my last school. Hui Malama
has more one-on-one time with the students. In public school it was hard for me to learn in big
classes, because I felt that we just rushed through lessons and I didn't really get the concept of
why we learn things and how they were important in our everyday lives. Here at Hui Malama,
the teachers take their time to explain why we need to learn about things and they help us to
clearly understand them. From being in a class of 20 to 30 kids to being in a class of 10 is a
small, yet big change for myself and others. Hui Malama has also helped me to realize that it is
easier and more enjoyable for me and...for me to work with my hands. Being at Hui Malama
has also helped me to find what kind of job I would be good at and how it would relate to what I
enjoy doing in my free time. At school I try to thank my teachers by doing my best and giving
110 percent and make sure that I come to school on time and have my homework done. In the
future I plan to give back, not just to Hui Malama, but to the community around us and show that
even with just a small community behind you, you can go far in life. That is the best thing that
Hui Malama has taught me that I can give back and make a difference. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Kamalei Amadeo? Followed by Julian Schenck.
MS. AMADEO: Hi, my name is Kamalei Amadeo. I'm 15 years old and I go to Hui Malama Learning
Center. I am in the high school program and this is my first year at the school. I go to Hui
Malama because I didn't get the help I needed at my old school and I was always worried about
what other people thought of me. I never considered as one of the smart kids because I missed a
lot of school of...due to medical conditions, so it really brought me down thinking that I wasn't
smart and I didn't even want to try to do my work. When I would ask my friends for help, they
would make fun of my medical condition making me feel even more bad about myself. But at
Hui Malama they understand what I'm going through and they take time to help me with my
work and even talk about any of my problems that I'm having. Since I've been going to Hui
Malama I've been getting my work done. Now I go to school and consider myself to be one of
the smart kids because they helped bring me out of my shell. I like Hui Malama because we
learn in a smaller class so it's easier to focus and we do a lot of hands-on work to keep us busy
like planting in our garden. Then we use the plants we grow in our food for our breakfast or
lunch. Hui Malama is more like a home and the people there are like family. They really try to
help us to be successful in school and in life. So I'm really thankful for them. After I get my
GED, I would like to go to college at UHMC and hopefully become a successful person and
make the teachers and myself proud that I went to Hui Malama.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
very much. Julian Schenck? Julian? Followed by McKenzie Tanner.
MR. SCHENCK: Aloha, County Council members. My name is Julian Schenck and I am the president
of the Haiku Boys and Girls Club Council. Thank you for allowing me to speak to you tonight.
I am here to tell you why the club is such an important place for me and what I do at the club.
The staff are great. They help us with our homework and our problems. When you are on the
club council, you get to interview new staff. We listen to what they want to say and see how
they are. And if we feel they are a good person and we want them on the staff, we vote on it. As
a club council member on...one of our jobs is to make sure the kids are following the rules and
we try to make role models for them. And we also go on fun trips and excursions and speak to
public hearings like this one. Recently, we fundraised money to go to Hana. We are going in
April. We go on fun trips and play fun sports. The club is a second home to me. I feel sad when
I have to stay home. I go to the club to cheer me up. The Boys and Girls Club is the funnest
place I've been to. The staff are nice and we look up to them as a role model and have a good
time. We treat each other like family. Being on the club council for so long is great. At club
council meetings we talk about how we feel and what bothers us and the club...at the club. I feel
if I wasn't on the club council I don't know what I would do when I feel sad, mad or happy. The
Boys and Girls Club is my favorite place to be. Thanks for listening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Next person to testify is
McKenzie Tanner. Followed by Sienna Miller.
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MS. TANNER: Aloha, County Council. My name is McKenzie Tanner. I am a sixth grader at Kalama
Intermediate and I am a member of the Haiku Boys and Girls Club and the vice president of the
club council. The Boys and Girls Club is a second home because every time when I go home I
never want to leave. We also do a lot of sports like soccer, ultimate football and dodge ball.
And I love the staff there. They are all very understanding. They always know what to say to
make you feel better. And I just want to thank the County Council for...for supporting our club.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, Sienna
Miller?
MS. MILLER: Hi. My name is Sienna Miller. I'm on the Haiku Club Council at Haiku Boys and Girls
Club. I'm 12-years old and I'm in the sixth grade at Kalama Intermediate. Every day after
school I ride the MEO bus to Haiku Boys and Girls Club. I actually stay at Boys and Girls Club
`til 6:30 every day. I have been going to Haiku Boys and Girls Club for a few years now. The
Haiku Boys and Girls Club is like my second home. I basically live there because I love it so
much. Everyone there is so nice. Some of the staff are really fun to be around and very
understanding. The Haiku Boys and Girls Club helped me become the person I am today. The
staff probably helped the most, but the kids there also helped me become a better person. The
teens are very good role models for us. They are everything a person would want them to be.
They are helpful, nice, respectful and they treat each other right. The kids at Boys and Girls
Club are very outgoing, enthusiastic and helpful around the club. The staff are always there for
us and they can always tell when we are feeling sad. They always find a way to make us feel
better. Our staff always finds ways to make the club fun for us and we never run out of things to
do. The kids at the Haiku Boys and Girls Club make me laugh every day. The younger kids are
always fun to be around. I can never get hungry at the Boys and Girls Club because Aunty Joy
makes her amazing food everyone wants. I'd probably get thirds if it's Aunty Joy's food. I will
never be able to find food as good as hers. Also our Boys and Girls Club Council kids did a
huge fundraiser selling Orange Leaf Yogurt tickets to raise money for the club so we could go to
Hana. Our kids did some hard work. Two of them even sold all their tickets within an hour.
The Haiku Boys and Girls Club will always be one of my homes. I couldn't think what I would
do without it. Thank you, Maurice and staff for making the Boys and Girls Club such an
awesome place and thank you for having me be here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. The next testifier is Michael Miranda. Followed by Maria Nachuo.
MR. MIRANDA: Hello, everyone. I'm Michael Miranda, a student at Hui Malama Learning Center.
I'm 17 and my goal is to get my GED. I've been at Hui Malama for two months or less and
already I've been seeing improvements and so have my teachers. I'm learning how to type
because I don't know how. I've been reading high-level literature. I've come to find out that I
really enjoy reading, too. Like on my spare time, I'd just go and read a book for fun. We've
also been doing a lot of volunteer work for the community. There's this garden we go to, I
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guess, plant, grow, help out the community. Hui Malama will help me with my future because I
can get my GED and I think right after that, I plan on taking my ASVAB. Thank you, everyone,
for listening.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you for
being here. Maria Nachuo? Maria? Followed by Talise Canton.
MS. NACHUO: Good evening, everyone. My name is Maria Nachuo and I'm here on behalf of the
MEO Head Start Program, in which my daughter is currently attending at the Haiku site. I have
been very fortunate to have had my other daughter attend this site for the past two years as well.
Being able to have this service has allowed myself and other parents continue working full time
and/or continue with education. The program has allowed parents to be a part of their child's
lives by volunteering their time in the classroom, prepping necessities for the classroom, being
chaperones on field trips, setting up fields trips and bringing speakers in from the community, as
well as, share one's native culture. This, as I have seen for myself, has helped both parents and
children grow together as a family and individuals in which also helps the children transition into
kindergarten with ease knowing they've been exposed to the classroom environment. I am
currently the chairperson of our policy council, which consists of parents representing each site,
who gather for monthly meetings with the directors, executives and staff and update each other
on changes within the program and site. This council has allowed us as parents to voice our
concerns and wishes for the program in which they try their very best in meeting our needs,
which they usually do. Personally, the teachers, family caseworkers and staff have helped my
family obtain services we needed that...that they provide, and if not, they were able to help me
reach out to services in the community. An example, Legal Services with PACT to ensure our
safety, counseling through Child and Family Services and most important, food and shelter for
the well-being of my family. I can't express any more how much this program truly does help
families in need, but that they truly are living by their motto, helping people changing lives.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you. Thank you
for being here. Talise Canton? Followed by Derek Kahalekai...Kahalekai.
MS. CANTON: Hi. I am Talise Canton and I am 10 years old. I have been a member of the Paia
Youth and Cultural Center since March 6, 2011. I love the Paia Youth and Cultural Center
because you can do a lot of fun stuff like go on the radio and go on Pete's Lab and make videos.
The Youth Center staff is really nice. You can do sports like soccer and volleyball. You can
paint and hang out with friends and skate in the skate park. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Derek, your turn.
MR. KAHALEKAI: Good afternoon, Maui Council members. My name is Derek Kahalekai and I
apologize for the way I am. I just came from the Youth Center. And I've been a member there
for only a couple of weeks. Though I've only been a member for couple of weeks, I can say that
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it is a wonderful place. It keeps kids like them off of the streets and staying out of trouble. I am
grateful for the staff there. They are very helpful for any of us. They help us with our
homework and just today, I have seen a couple of kids getting help from one of our members
named Benjamin. I am very thankful that I have got the chance to get a...somewhat of a job
there for like this thing called skate ...(inaudible)... working at the skate park down there. I am
currently attending King Kekaulike and comparison to my school and the Youth Center, I'd
rather go to the Youth Center all day... only because there's less trouble. There's less trouble.
Kids don't tend to want to get into fights with everyone. These kids who go to the Youth Center
are always happy, always smiling. And I also thank the members there. If it wasn't for them, I
wouldn't have anywhere to go after school except for home. And I look at the Youth Center as a
second home. So pretty much all I can say is, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Regiemar Cadang? Regiemar Cadang?
MR. CADANG: Good evening, Budget Committee. My name is Regiemar Cadang and I'm a senior at
Maui High School. I have been going to MEO for about six years now and I love coming to
MEO. I come to MEO because it's like a place to get away from all the stress at home and at
school. I also come to MEO because I like to meet new friends and learn new life skills I'm
going to use in the future. Over the years, MEO's after school program became my second home
and I've made a lot of new friends. MEO's after school program is very important to me and the
other people that are in it, because we learn a lot from our wonderful staffs at MEO. Over the
years I've been going to MEO, I have matured a lot thanks to the program. In the after school
program we get to work on our homework and if we need help, we get help and explained to us
by our intelligent staffs at MEO. MEO's after school program helped me open my first savings
bank at Kulia Federal Credit Union. Every time we work we used to get paid $10 a day and we
either would use...we either would put half or all of the money inside the bank. The money I put
in the bank is still there today. I haven't taken anything out of my account because I'm saving it
up for college. In the summer MEO...the summer MEO program, when we went all over the
island and learned about the history. I learned, going to the summer program, we got to travel to
a lot of places, for example, we got to go to Molokini and look at the beautiful fishes and the
wonderful corals there. We also went to Hana to participate in a service-learning project with
the Hana youths. In MEO, we learned about under-age drinking and the tobacco preventions. I
learned that under-age drinking kills a lot of people and is a...and it kills a lot...the most people
out of all the drugs and is the most abused drug on Hawaii. We also got our certified CPR and
first aid there. Thank you for taking the time to listen to us here.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Next testifier is Breaya Seats.
MS. SEATS: Good evening, Budget Committee. My name is Breaya Seats. I'm a freshman at Maui
High School. I have been at MEO Youth Service for about two years, two-and-a-half years now.
The reason I keep coming back to MEO is because I need something to do to keep me away from
negative influences, stress at home. When I have stress at home, my MEO leaders are always
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there for me. If I didn't have MEO I'd probably doing bad stuff like drinking and smoking. This
program has taught me about the harmful effects of alcohol and tobacco. Every time we go to
MEO we learn something new. Just last night we attended a under-age drinking town hall
meeting at King Kekaulike where I learned that different types of drink can contain the same
alcohol content and that drinking and driving can absolutely be fatal. Beginning...at the meeting
made me feel important because I was involved in a really important community event, which I
hope will help the youth realize how important life is. This is why I come to MEO to learn about
our community and things. I don't always learn in school. MEO has kept me out of trouble and
I would like to thank you for listening to my testimony.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Next testifier is Kaya Glomb.
MS. GLOMB: I have been going to Paia Youth and Cultural Center for about three years and I feel very
comfortable here. All the staff workers here are always really nice to me. They teach me a lot. I
love this place so much. We do a lot of fun things at Paia Youth and Cultural Center. We make
sock puppets. We make our own custom ping pong paddles and make paintings of anything. I
love going on the radio and I think I really good at it. I love to hang out with my friends and I
love skateboarding. And I just started liking kickball and basketball. I love this place so much.
Everyone here are like my family. That is why I love the Youth Center.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you,
again. Next testifier is David Morales?
MR. MORALES: Hi, my name is David. I have my own landscaping business, and my family and I,
we here to support MEO Enlace Hispano. Through them we've been learning how to speak the
proper English and we want to support them. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again. The next testifier is Maurice Bason [sic]?
MR. BAJON: Aloha, County Council members. My name is Maurice Bajon and I'm the Unit Director
of the Haiku Boys and Girls Club. And at a recent function, Councilmember Baisa mentioned
that she likes visual aids and she likes to be able to look at something, so I brought our yearbook
for the last year from the Boys and Girls Club and we had the members holding up. There's a
little panels that we put up on our walls basically of events past. So, there was a Thanksgiving
dinner. There was a Christmas Carol show. We also had our summer barbecue, little field trips.
So that's what the members were holding and I'll just give it to the Council member, oh. I'm
very thankful for the opportunity to speak in front of you today on behalf of our Haiku members
and their families. I brought the club council with me today to share their stories. I didn't know
they were going to go before me, so they already did that. And I'm also here to ask you for
increase in funding for the Youth Centers in general. In the past year, our membership just at our
club has increased and our daily average attendance has increased. So in the last fiscal year that
we already reported on, we had 317 members and we had a record average daily attendance of
-8-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 29, 2012
Makawao-Haiku-Paia District

72. In the fiscal year that we're in right now, that hasn't ended yet, we're already surpassing
those numbers. As of today, we have 308 registered members with still one quarter to go and we
usually get a spike in the registrations right before summertime, because parents don't know
what to do with their kids when they have to go to work. And our average daily attendance is 84,
which...and that includes all the breaks and the holidays when our attendance is lower. So
basically it means that every day on an average school day, we have between 105 and 125 kids
attending our Haiku Boys and Girls Club. We're basically at capacity. If you look at our
building, we're running at capacity as far as staff and as far as facilities. We do everything in
our power to provide a safe and nurturing place for the kids in Haiku and as the members have
testified, they feel like it's their second home. And with the help of my amazing staff and
volunteers--and we've been able to get some amazing volunteers this year to help us out--we're
able to create a second home for those kids. But with the increases in funding that hopefully you
guys will include in the Budget, we will be able to hire additional staff and we will be, hopefully,
able to expand our building to maybe serve up to 200 kids a day. Because we're game for it...we
as staff, the more kids, the better. That's why we never turn anybody away. That's why we
never tell kids, I'm sorry we're full today, please come back the next day.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. BAJON: We take as many kids as possible and we provide programs for them in five core areas.
It is arts, character and leadership; sports and recreation; health and life fitness; and character and
citizenship. And if you can imagine 125 kids all doing something that influences their life on a
daily basis, you will see that we're a very worthy cause to increase funding. Mahalo for your
time and I'm turning it over to Kelly Pearson. Aloha. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, Kelly
Pearson?
MS. PEARSON: Good evening, Council members. My name is Kelly Pearson. I'm the Director of
Operations for the Boys and Girls Clubs of Maui. I've been with the organization for 15 years
this year, and in the 15 years I've seen the organization grow a lot. You've just heard Maurice
and his members brag about his Haiku Club, and in the next few weeks you're gonna hear all our
other club directors and the kids do the same about their clubs. I want to thank you for all the
support that you've given us over the last decade that I've been with the organization. We are
here to ask you to continue to support us. Up until two years ago, we used to have the kids come
in, sign in on the front door, and two years ago we got a new tracking system, which is called
KidTrax. So two years ago they used to come in, sign in on the paper so that we could count
how many kids came in. Today they come in and they scan in with their membership card. So
this is our data system. This is our tracking system. So every kid that comes in, they scan in,
the thing makes, beep, and then we know they're there. When they leave, they scan out. So, and
the reason I'm telling you this is so that you know that when we use your funds and support that
you give us, we are tracking the data that come in. And I think that's very important. Before, we
could all gather the kids in one room with the staff and three to four staff was enough to watch
them. Today like Maurice said, the buildings are packed with kids. We continue to need more
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and more staff. Before it was good enough to count members. All you had to do was count the
kids, figure out how many kids came to your club, figure out how many kids in sports, fitness
and rec., how many kids did health and life skills. Today, it's important that we measure the
income...I mean, the outcomes. It's not enough to tell you how many kids we have. You need
to know why you give us every dollar. So today, we collect report cards. Today we
started...this year we're starting a college-bound program where every youth member in our
organization, we're gonna strive to get them to either graduate from high school or move on to
the next grade. So we're working very hard to do that. We're working on a partnership with
DOE to get these numbers. Again, it's easy to say they have Power Hour and they do their
homework every day, but really how much impact are we having? Today we counting the
number of community service hours that they're performing. Again, we can say we're
developing good kids, but how do you know how we're doing it? And every time they go and
clean the beaches or go and clean Maliko...yeah, the highway, those are all community service
hours and that contributes to character and leadership. Today we've been counting the number
of hours that they doing exercise. Because again, healthy lifestyles, that's what we need to do.
So the reason why I tell you all of this is because that's where we're at. Fifteen years ago,
counting heads was enough. I don't think we're there now. I think we really need to let you
know and anybody that you give money to -MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MS. PEARSON: --needs to let you know how much impact you're making. So, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you, Kelly. The
next testifier is Robert Nakagawa.
MR. NAKAGAWA: Aloha, Council members. Thank you for allowing us this opportunity. I'm here
tonight to share with you our scouting program, but more importantly we have a phenomenal
facility called Camp Maluhia. It's home to over a thousand scouts that we serve here in Maui
County over 68 units representing all over the islands. These kids come to our camp every year
but more importantly I think you'll find it interesting to know that it's a bigger community
resource than just a scout camp. More non-scouts use our facility annually than our own scouts.
Camp has been around for more than 75 years and it's seen better days. We've had a lot of
termite damage. We've actually had to condemn a number of buildings. We pride ourselves at
being able to be self-sufficient and a number of our scouts go out and do community service
projects. We can't even have our own scouts do service projects for our own camp, because it's
against what scouting does as far as providing for the community. So it's important that we're
here tonight to ask for the County's support to help in funding us on our capital campaign needs.
We have a $6.6 million campaign in which we're renovating the entire camp, putting in new
dining facility, trying to make it ADA accessible for the other agencies that use our facility, like
Imua Family Services has their wonderful Camp Imua every year, Rotary has their Rotary Youth
Leadership Academy and a number of the high schools and churches and so many other
organizations that use our facility. Yes, we teach our kids how to tie knots. You'd be surprised.
If you went into one of our bathrooms just a year ago, you look up into the rafters and you notice
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that one of the rafters that had the light, the fluorescent lights that are hanging from the rafters,
the beam holding the lights was lashed to the rafters because so much termite damage, the nails
and screws did not suffice. So needless to say we've been able to tear some of these buildings
down. We're in the process. We've done over 1.1 million in raising and collaborating with the
community, like the Army Corps of Engineers and the National Guard. We have two, new, solid
buildings for the restroom facilities that are now individual, unisex restrooms, where it's not
gang showers any more whether it's youth or adult, boy or girl, everybody has their own private
shower stall, which is important because again, not only scouts use the facility, but the entire
community, boys, girls, men, women. And it's important that they have a safe place to shower
and take use of our facilities. We have so much more to do because the camp is seeing, you
know, 75 years of service. We calculated, you know, thousands and thousands of Eagle Scouts
that have gone through the program that have used Camp Maluhia as their backyard and again,
so many other countless organizations that use the same facilities. So I encourage you to help
support the Maui County Council Boy Scouts of America by helping us to make an amendment
to the Budget.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Nakagawa? If not, thank you,
again, Robert. Oh, I'm sorry. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Nakagawa. Did — were you able to ask the Mayor and
give him a number because I can't find -MR. NAKAGAWA: No -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --anything in the Budget.
MR. NAKAGAWA: --we have not, which is why we're going to request for an amendment to the
Budget. We realize that we're late. It's our first time going through this process for myself,
especially. But I can't thank you enough for past support. Because of your support we were able
to put in a whole new septic system, which makes us current and legal with the EPA. And I
can't tell you how important that is, not only for the scouts, but the entire community. So I don't
have anything in the Mayor's Budget at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you have a number that you're looking for?
MR. NAKAGAWA: Five hundred thousand dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for Mr. Nakagawa? Thank you,
again, Robert.
MR. NAKAGAWA: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: The next testifier is Saralynn Borges and Ethan Borges.
MS. BORGES: Aloha. My name is Saralynn Borges. I am representing MEO rental assistance. Bear
with me, I don't have anything written down but seven months ago, we were pretty much
homeless. Our landlord left the island, took our deposit, everything. So we...we're newlyweds.
We just had a baby. We had no credit, nothing. I applied for MEO assistance and they came
through right away. Thank God. And we were able to actually buy paper towels for our house
and conditioner for ourselves and just...we were actually able to make a home. So they really
did help us and I'm very grateful to have MEO. Without them, we wouldn't be where we are
today. So, thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. The next testifier is John Lander. Followed by Sally Karr.
MR. LANDER: Good evening, I'm John Lander. I'm a Academic Instructor at Hui Malama Learning
Center and thanks to the County Council for your on-going support of Hui Malama. It's greatly
appreciated. Our program emphasis is on preparing our students who maybe have had difficulty
in traditional educational settings, preparing them for future educational and career opportunities
and also to be responsible community members. We offer the students small, group learning
opportunities. Most of the classes are...have ten or fewer students. They have many community
excursions to broaden their horizons and just as importantly, it allows them to participate in a lot
of volunteer projects around the island. They do hands-on projects, which reinforce their
learning. The students learn to be accountable and responsible, and I've seen many... in my time
there I've seen a lot of improvement with individual students, which is really satisfying. So the
students, parents and staff of Hui Malama greatly appreciate your support and hope that it will
continue. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you, again. Sally Karr?
MS. KARR: Good evening, Council members. Thank you for being here tonight to hear us out. I am
here to speak with you about the MEO Rental Assistance Program. A few months ago I had to
have surgery done to my hand and I wasn't able to work for a while. Without the rental
assistance program that I received, I would have not been able to pay rent and I would probably
be homeless now. They're wonderful people. They're very helpful and I can't imagine what,
you know, where we would be or what we'd be doing without this program. So I ask you very
much to continue funding it and allow it to continue helping us. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier. Seeing none, thank you
again. Claire Sheehan? Claire Sheehan?
MS. SHEEHAN: Hi, good evening, Council members. It's a privilege for me to be here tonight to
speak on behalf of my organization, the Maui Humane Society. And I just really wanted to take
this time to thank you all. I know a lot of you have come by the shelter recently just to pay a
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visit, see what we're all about, what we've been doing and how we're doing. And we're in there
with you. We still know these are hard times ahead. We're not out of the woods yet, but we
always just want to keep thanking you folks for the support and keeping us in mind and knowing
that we do a vital service for the community. It's not all warm and fuzzy, though I do have baby
kittens I'm feeding and they're in my car so I have to make this brief. We do want to
acknowledge that we're striving to look at cost-saving things. I've just been very involved with
hopefully we're getting photovoltaic online for us, changing all to LED lights, anything we can
do to keep with the times. It's not going away. Times are going to be difficult for a while
longer, and we want to see the income that donors and County provide going to the best areas
possible and that's back out into our community. So as the Facilities Director, I'm charged with
finding ways that the dollars coming to us are going back out into programs and I can keep our
facility itself running with the lights on, but as economical as possible. So I thank you for your
support for keeping our lights on and I'll try to keep them burning brighter. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you. Anne Leete? Followed by Tim Wolfe.
MS. LEETE: Good evening, Council members. My name is Anne Leete and I am a Board Member at
the Hui Malama Learning Center. First I want to thank you for your support over the years. It's
really enabled the staff and the Director at Hui Malama to create a program that is really unique
on Maui. We are a small school and we are happy that we're a small school. We are not trying
to be a big school. And I think that our strength is in our size right now. We have a small group
of students, a small group of very, very dedicated teachers and management staff, who have
enabled us to develop a really unique school on Maui that allows the students to have one-on-one
individual attention, that allows them to do projects like creating a community garden in and on
our building that provides food for the students and enables them to also work on creating valueadded products that they can sell in the community and learn about vocational training,
marketing, things like that through that process. We have created some really good community
partnerships this year and are...excuse me, focusing our efforts on work force development and
on helping train our students so that they can stay here on Maui and earn a living and have
generations of their families able to be here, be successful and continue with the positive
education that they have learned. The other point that I would like to make is that Hui Malama
has developed, I'm sorry, lost my train of thought there for a second, sorry, it's been a long day.
We have tried to develop an opportunity for students who have had difficulties in the mainstream
public education system, to kinda change their attitude and their family's attitude about
education and about what going to school and getting an education means and feels like and
looks like. The public school system doesn't work for everyone and we've heard stories from
some of our students who said it wasn't really the right fit for them and that that kind of made
them maybe have a bad taste in their mouth about education in general. I think that Hui Malama
offers students, who have had an experience that isn't quite right, an opportunity to have an
incredibly positive educational experience. So we thank you for your continued support and ask
that you continue to support Hui Malama in the future. Mahalo.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Tim Wolfe? Followed by Michael Gagne?
MR. WOLFE: Aloha, Council members. Three minutes for 19 years. I'm Tim Wolfe. I'm the
Treasurer of the Haiku Community Association. You have a lot of Budget items to consider and
we're hoping that you might squeeze us in. I stand here to make a request that the County
consider including a Budget item of perhaps 10 to 20K to fund more marketing and headline
entertainment for our 20 th anniversary celebration of the Haiku Hoolaulea Flower Festival next
year. This flyer, which you will all get a copy of, states that this is a community celebration to
benefit Haiku's keiki. The key words here are both, celebration and benefit. On the celebration
side, in 1993, it was Ed Silverstein's dream. He saw a field of dreams at the Haiku Community
Center. He believed that if you built the Haiku Hoolaulea, that people would come and he
created the Haiku Hoolaulea Flower Festival, along with some other community members, some
of whom are here tonight. It was originally an idea to celebrate the agricultural and cultural
underpinnings of the community of Haiku. Ed and Mike Gagne and Lucienne de Naie, who are
here, created the vision for a big party to celebrate the community of Haiku. We had some wild
times with, oh, lawnmower races and all kinds of things out there at the fairgrounds. But years
later, the benefit aspect of it came to be a key part of the Haiku Hoolaulea Flower Festival.
Originally it was held in the fall for the first five years or so. The benefit part of it came about
because Haiku School was doing a spring bazaar. And when I was president of the Haiku School
PTA and running the spring bazaar, we were happy to make about $14,000 and a benefit for all
the extra programs that the Department of Education couldn't fund. Now years later it became
clear that for the benefit of the entire community of Haiku, that the Community Association, the
Haiku Elementary School and the Boys and Girls Club of Haiku, who have been very adequately
represented here tonight, it made sense to combine the event--the signature headline event was
the Haiku Hoolaulea Flower Festival--with the school bazaar and the Boys and Girls Club to
create the big annual benefit, as well as the community cultural celebration for Haiku. So we
decided to move the event from the fall to the spring. Now when we moved the event to the
spring and combined all of these resources, the net benefit jumped to about forty or fifty
thousand dollars a year, which was a major boost to the important programs of all of these
organizations. And it was a fine example of the cooperation in 2005 when the 100 th anniversary
of Haiku Elementary School was being celebrated, and that centennial celebration it was
stretched...the one-day event was stretched to four-day weekend. We had people coming in
from all over the State of Hawaii, from off-island, the mainland coming back to celebrate the
centennial of Haiku, and it was staged to coincide with the flower festival of that year. Now
what happened was that in this great celebration it turned into a historic event itself. And the
Haiku Living Legacy Project, which is another worthwhile nonprofit, was formed that year. And
it took up the call to create an organization that recognized the cultural history of Haiku. It's
going strong. It's part of the celebration every year providing historical displays and talk-story
sessions.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
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MR. WOLFE: Thank you. We've published a very successful book by Louis Baldovi called, Holoholo
To Wen I Wuz. We've sold 500 copies of that as the Living Legacy Project, all about the
community of Haiku. This is...all these energies came about because of the original spark to
build on that field of dreams. And I believe that if we...Ed believed...we all believed that if we
build it, you would come. And 19 years later, lots and lots of people have come to play with us
on our field of dreams. We would like the County to help us with our 20 th anniversary
celebration. We think of this as a major milestone to support the marketing of headline
entertainment for this memorable two-decades event. It's two decades of grassroots commitment
to this festival and for Haiku it's really a dream come true. Mahalo for your attention. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you very much.
MR. WOLFE: Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Michael Gagne?
MR. GAGNE: Good evening, Council members. My name is Mike Gagne. I am the President Pro Tem
of the Haiku Community Association. I have been president of the community association for
seven of the last thirty years in various iterations. Nineteen years ago when Ed Silverstein came
to me with an idea to develop a festival that would promote Haiku, we knew that flower growing
was kind of a nascent activity, and so we worked for seven months trying to put this event on and
overcoming all kinds of obstacles, mostly ourselves and how to do it. But Ed — one of Ed's first
question was, he goes, well, how do we do this? It's — I don't know, but I know somebody who
does. And of course I have a neighbor Lucienne de Naie, who will be here also, who had told
me at one point that she had developed a craft festival in her town in California. I went to her
and asked her and she goes, no way, absolutely no way. So I knew I had to come up with a
different approach to her. A week later I went back. I said, well, I tell you what, how about if
we just do what you tell us to do. We'll do it and then we will be there. So she gave us a list of
things to do. A week later, we had them done. We went back, got a few more things to do. We
got those done and after a while we cajoled her into coming to join us. So the flower festival
was kind of a bunch of silliness. The Haiku rubber boot race, as Tim mentioned the lawnmower
race, which was won by somebody pushing a lawnmower. The riding mowers weren't fast
enough. And it was kind of a lot of fun. That was the year we also, we got a $1,000 grant from
Maui County, which allowed us to make nearly $700. There were a lot of expenses and a lot of,
you know, unknowns that we ran into and probably did some wrong things, but at least we came
out of it with money for postage for the community association. Over the period of time, we
realized that this had to become part of something else, become part of the school, both for
credibility as well as enlisting more people to help. Ed insisted or tried to insist to the PTA that
this was developed for them because it was a hoolaulea, which was a Hawaiian event while they
were having a bazaar, which is a Turkish word. So over a period of time we did convince them.
Unfortunately, Ed passed away shortly after the first hoolaulea but it was his vision that we
carried on with...I gotta tell you the second year, putting the hoolaulea on was a little difficult. It
was fraught with memories, but a lot more people came along and helped us, which was really
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the issue. Now the community association has been active in this community for 30 years. It is
through the vision of Celeste King, who a lot of you know or certainly maybe remember, that the
Boys and Girls Club came along, as well as a number of other issues that the community
association worked at over a period of time to develop into things that were beneficial for our
community. So one of the things that would be really beneficial is if we could get a grant from
the County to help really establish us for our 20 th year and provide on-going seed money that we
could then begin to carry on a better, larger, cultural event. That is what this has become.
Currently every bit of money comes in, there's always a need that's way beyond the amount of
income. This year we have a professional manager helping us do it. We're really excited
Saturday, which you are all invited to, I'm sure most of you have gotten an invitation. We're
expecting it to be a really big event and it's kind of the growing year to number 20, which will be
next year.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. GAGNE: Well, I thank you. Three minutes was probably more than I should have spoken, but I
just wanted to say please, if you could consider us, we would be very thankful and promise to
use the money responsibly. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Craig Philips? Followed by Nancy Johnson.
MR. PHILIPS: Aloha, Committee. My name is Craig Philips. I'm manager for Keiki Kokua. We do
like all the foster youth program, et cetera. And first time I've been here so let me just introduce
myself. First of all, I am...was a counselor for the Department of Vocational Rehabilitation, and
then I became a support counselor for Ka Lima 0 Maui and then I'm now the manager from
Keiki Kokua. My role is I am the manager of the thrift store. And under my watch we do the
volunteer program. We do the community service program. And what we want to try and get is
our foster youth employment program. You probably wonder what the foster youth employment
program is. Basically it's a program where the foster youth that do community service or they
just come, enter our program where we can actually train them on their total retail aspect of a
store, how we run a store, stock rotation, pricing, the POS system, greeting the customers,
customer service. And we have...what I have done is I've listed the ...(inaudible)... and
programs where they receive education and training and then we do like an evaluation. And
when they want to go for a retail job, on the resume they will have not only that they worked for
the store, but we will also give them a record of the training and what was accomplished while
being at the store. Now to do all that, there's only me and as you can see, I'm a one-arm bandit.
I just need a little bit help on funding so that I can employ somebody with maybe a bit of
counseling or maybe good retail experience where we could, I could achieve this goal a lot easier
than what I'm trying to do right now. And we're not asking for a lot of money. We're only
asking for 15K and...which is a lot less of what we've asked for previous years. We're almost
self-sustained now in the store. We're actually gaining momentum and we just...with the rising
inflation and the rising everything and trying to give our staff that help just that little bit extra
money just to keep them on board. And we're really strained trying to bring someone else on
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board just to help with the foster youth employment program. I have written the program
myself. I'm willing to answer any questions. And the test aspect and the training aspect, I've
run through the DVR, I've run through all the board members. It's quite solid and we're also a,
ongoing at the moment with the foster youths that are doing our community service. We're
putting them through the training program so that they have some sort a training record for what
they've been doing, not only community service but what they been learning and attributing [sic]
to society at the same time. Again that's Keiki Kokua Thrift Store, my name is Craig Philips.
Thank you and mahalo for all your time. My first time here, a little bit nervous. Thank you. I'll
answer any of your questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier. Thank you very much
and thank you for you guys good work.
MR. PHILIPS: Mahalo and thank you for your time, Committee. Bye-bye.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Nancy Johnson? Followed by Lucienne de Naie.
MS. JOHNSON: Good evening. I'm Nancy Johnson. I'm the Allied Health Department Chair at Maui
College, and I brought pictures to show you the results of your effort. This year we had 71
registered nurse graduates. This picture is of our May graduates and the picture I'm passing is of
the December graduates. The December graduates, we wouldn't have at all without the grant we
got from the County. Health care has been in the news and one of the interesting things is that
no matter what happens in Washington, in Hawaii we're going to have probably some kind of
managed health care, just an expansion of what we currently have. And I've provided a packet
of information for you with literature from the Honolulu Advertiser and from the Governor, has
created a council... in January, he created a council for health care reform, a transition council.
And the information is very important for you to read because it really emphasizes the fact that
the number of people that we're going to care for in our health care system gonna change
dramatically no matter what happens in Washington. And the only way we can do it effectively
is by using the least expensive, high-quality health care providers and those are nurses. And the
literature that I've given you is all from within the last three months. And I encourage you to
read it. The — and one thing I want to commend you and Maui County is that on this council
there is only one dentist, and that dentist is Dr. Spencer Owades from the Maui Oral Health
Center which you've funded for the last ten years. So I want to thank you for your support and
ask for you to continue to support us. As soon as the new science building is finished, we're
going to move into the old science building and a lot of the money we've been asking you for we
won't need. Probably that's 18 months more because you've been paying the rent or helping us
to pay the rent at the Maui Oral Health Center. So thank you again and I hope you can be proud
of your product.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Thank you again,
Nancy. Lucienne de Naie. And following Lucienne is Mary Cochran.
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MS. DE NAIE: Aloha, Council members. My name is Lucienne de Naie and my name's been bandied
about a bit tonight. I'm here to talk about a special place, Haiku and our signature event, the
Hoolaulea. The Hoolaulea is more than a party. It's actually good business for our community.
It started a farmer's market that now, the spaces are sold out, you know, before the day of. It
started a great arts and crafts show that really encourages so many of the local home businesses
in our community to have a special outlet where their works can be known. We have our flower
design contest that is in partnership with the Maui Flower Growers Association, allows them to
promote what they do. Many visitors come to the event and they see the beauty that is available
in our agricultural industry and, you know, just all in all, it creates a feeling of community in a
place that's had a lot of transition. The fact that no one has come here in the past and asked to be
included in the Budget is sort of part of the scrappy nature of Haiku. I mean, I can remember
when things were just done by, you know, beg, borrowing and stealing anything that we
needed...not literally stealing but, you know, just finding someone that wasn't using it and we
could return it later. But times have changed and we're at the point where we have some
opportunities. We saw with the reunion in 2005 where 800 former alumni came and the bonds
that came out of that, and we've had these talk-story events that came out of the Haiku Living
Legacy project where the kupuna of our community came out and have shared their experiences.
This is what community is about, you know. Lahaina has a signature event and Upcountry has a
signature event. And you know, South Maui, I guess has Whale Day, is sort of a signature event.
But in Haiku, it's just down home and it would really be nice to make our 20 th anniversary count
for something, boost the whole thing to the next level and, you know, over 20 years, not much to
ask. We would like a little support if it is possible, so we hope you are all listening. And I
personally want to thank you folks for putting things in the Budget like the repairs to Waikamoi
and, you know, support for some of the youth activities that we have here. It's all working and it
needs to keep working and it's a good investment for our community because, you know, people
are priceless. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Lucienne this evening? Good job on
your first flower festival. Mary Cochran? Followed by Stacie Alexander.
MS. COCHRAN: I didn't know this was going to be a needs kinda program over here tonight. I was
just gonna look at the Budget today to just, looked it over and looked like we're trending towards
good economic recovery and especially when I look at what the priorities on taking care of our
infrastructural needs. But I do feel sorry for you guys, okay. Because I worked on the Board of
Education for eight years, and I know when they start lining up and telling us why their program
is more important than the others, et cetera, I know there's limited money. I think, well, I don't
know what kinda, anyhow, just wanted to tell you guys I like the Mayor's presentation and I
don't know how you guys are gonna tweak it, but it looks like our Maui County's gonna be in
good shape. But now come to this needs program, it seems that...and I hope that the Charter
Commission when they go around and that the need for in-house, the Council auditor, you know,
to evaluate these programs to assess, to see all this competing interest. Because we know that
we're giving about $26 million in grants and everybody's got needs. And when I see — but the
only thing as a citizen that I would require, you know, on the grants program is transparency and
accountability. Not just to say we give them $100,000 and then they tell us, oh, we spent this
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and this and this and that, and there's no visual effects to it. MEO, you can see it. You see what
they do. You can touch, you can feel and you know what they're accomplishing. Those are the
kind of programs, those kind of grants, because we cannot...and I know we give about over $25
million a year in grants so I don't envy you guys. But main thing is that meet the needs of our
community, really and that you can see something that we getting something for it... for example
the Hoolaulea. We know that's a big thing. It's as big as the Lahaina thing. In fact I think it's
more wholesome, anyway, to start with. Okay. I mean really in truth, but anyhow, you guys,
listen, good job on that one. I didn't know I was gonna come here and get down on my knees
and beg, 'cause the only thing I'm going to beg for from what I've been hearing about the MEO
needs and the Boys and Girls Clubs needs, everybody's needs, so I don't feel sorry for you
guys...especially in an election year. Well, for those that's not gonna...okay, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier. Seeing none, thank you.
Next testifier is Stacie Alexander. Followed by Nikhilananda.
MS. ALEXANDER: Aloha. Hi, everybody. My name is Stacie Alexander. I am one of the parents
with the MEO Head Start here in Haiku. Great program. I love it. Thank you, guys, for all your
support. I hope you keep it up and keep that going for the kids because it's great for the kids.
You know, it benefits the kids. I mean that's why we're all here. You know, on a kind of a little
side note, not really with the MEO Head Start Program, couple of things that I notice, there's that
speed limit posts, you know, how fast you're going right there on the road by the school. I don't
know how many times, both, in the morning and in the afternoon when I — that's my boy right
there. When I go to pick him up, I see, you know, State workers, County workers, you know,
businesses, you know as well as local and visitors, you know, here on island go flying down that
hill, and this sign lights up 30, you know 40 miles an hour. It's like not that far back it says 20
miles an hour for a school zone. So be nice, you know, see a little more, maybe, police presence
there, enforcing the speed limit, because all it would take is one car hitting that turn wrong on a
rainy day, like right into the playground for the...where my boy goes to school. You know, so,
that's something that really kinda needs to be addressed I think. And the other thing I hope is
you guys...I don't know how much influence you have in as far as sports and exercise and music
within just this school district itself, is my boy's going into kindergarten this next year. I'd like
to see that going on. I participated in sports the whole time I was in school. I was a band
member, you know, I did all kinds of that stuff, and it's sad to see that it's...a lot of those things
are going by the way. You know, P.E. P.E.'s a great thing, you know. There's this big thing
about obesity going on and yet they're going to chop out P.E.? It doesn't make sense. That's
kinda like, oh, yeah, you know, we're gonna work on the erosion problem but we're gonna tear
out all the plants. Like, whoops, kinda backwards, you know, so. That's it. That's really all I
wanted to say. Thanks, like I said, thank you for supporting the Head Start Program. I hope you
keep it up and keep the program going. It's great for the kids. It really is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. The last testifier signed up for public testimony is Nik...Nik... yeah, you.
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MR. NIKHILANANDA: Budget Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the County Council. My name
is Nikhilananda. I'm a 25-year, 251/2-year resident of Maui County and for the last 141/2 years
I've lived out in Huelo. Usually when I come here and I've been coming for years, I have a
whole long, laundry list of stuff that I would like...I tried to shorten it for this presentation today.
About ten days ago, I sent a letter all of the, to the entire Council plus to the Chair of the
Planning Department, the Director and also to the Mayor and so I don't really want to read the
entire letter here, but I just want to make reference and I do wanna thank Councilmember Carroll
who actually called me and let me know that he did receive it and was still awaiting the Budget.
So now that you have it and of course 20 years ago, as I said in the letter, I approached
Charmaine Tavares, who was the head of the Parks and Rec at the time and suggested, having
just recently moved from Lahaina, that it would be nice if we had some tennis courts on the
North Shore, either Paia or Haiku, before I ever moved out to Huelo. Twenty years later, coming
to this body, year after year after year, they still have not been built. Now at the Fourth Marine
Park, they're in the master plan. They've been there. This Council, a number of years they've
been budgeted, by the Mayor and the Council, to be removed continually. I was informed years
ago when they were developing the Fourth Marine Park they wanted to finish the corral, which is
now, you know, named for Tom Morrow, who sat on this body and then hopefully the courts
would be built soon after that. Again years later, absolutely nothing. Ironically today, in The
Maui News--I'm sure some of you read it, our local, daily paper--there was a letter to the editor
where someone spoke about the very same item. He happens to live in Paia, I believe, and
wanted some courts in Paia. I'm not against courts in Paia and it would be nice if there were
couple of courts in Paia. For those of us in Haiku and for me out in Huelo, it's a little further to
go. But if they were built here, that would be fine. If you look at the Fourth Marine Park,
there's room where they can be built. So again, I'm on my hands and knees, please put at least
one, if not two courts. As I said in my letter also, Kula had no courts. They got two courts and
then they organized. Everyone that showed up signed a petition, came down and then they got
two more courts. So in the 20 years, Kula went from no courts to four courts. I'm just asking for
two courts, at least one if not two courts. Now the Mayor, I heard him today on his radio show
talking about millions of dollars of expenditures and acquisitions of lands and parks. Before we
do that or at the same time, I'm not against parks, let's put some tennis courts facilities over here
in Haiku. Again, I'm not against them being in Paia, I'm speaking from Haiku because I live
even further out in Huelo. So I've probably spoken enough about that. The other one that I'm a
broken record about is curbside residential recycling. I know it was in the Budget last year, it got
pulled out. I don't want to get into the politics of it, but 17 years ago, former Mayor, Council
member and Governor Linda Lingle proposed it and it got pulled out then in 1995. If you go to
any of the drop boxes, you see the garbage, literally, that is put in the drop boxes, newspapers-big sign says, no phone books--phone books, garbage, boxes. I just came out here...tonight is
garbage night out in Haiku and Huelo, and you see along the side of the road, you can see
cardboard boxes piled on top of the garbage. So as long as we make it so cheap for people to
throw garbage away even out in place like Huelo and Haiku where you have room, people just
throw away their garbage because we charge so little for trash. And when you raise the price as
you did, then people complain that they're going to throw it on the side of the road. But that's a
bunch of, excuse me, you know, it's ridiculous. So, again, what you could do actually is include
the garbage collection or waste collection in the property taxes. That's a whole other area. I've
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been a broken record that we need to change property taxes. I don't think this is the body that's
appropriate to speak about it. I would...I'm glad...for years I used to come and say, hey, let's
have a public transportation system. And I remember back in '98 when I stood for this body, the
two people that I was running against in those days when there were partisan races said, oh, we
don't need a bus system, no one's ever gonna use them. And of course, one of them got elected.
MR. KANESHINA: Three minutes.
MR. NIKHILANANDA: And I'll make it really quick. And of course years later, look at the bus
system. I would like to see expanded routes, routes, of course one from Makawao down to
Haiku, and I would like to see a bus continue out to Twin Falls and then to Door of Faith Road
and turn... and there's a nice area where it can turn around there. So people of Huelo can
actually use the bus rather than having to drive here to Haiku or this side... as long as I've gone
this far to just keep on going. And the last thing is I'd like to see more money put into the
bathrooms in the County Parks. They are just disgusting. That's an understatement and that's
actually nice. I don't even want to use them and I'm pretty trashy. I cannot imagine people
coming to...and they're just ridiculous. And I don't know who has the responsibility, if it's
private or if it's the County, whatever it is, they need to be maintained. Really put some effort
into that. And you know how they have a bathroom facility in Wailuku right on Market Street, I
would like to see the same things in Makawao and something here in Paia, rather than...of
course at least in Paia you have all the restaurants, you could walk in the restaurants. But a
facility when tourists and residents need to use the facility that they're available. So again, I
tried to make it short and I still went over my time as always, but again thank you for your time
and aloha.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank you
again. Nikhilananda was the last person to sign up for public testimony.
MS. COCHRAN: I think I had one more minute, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: ... (chuckles)... Sorry. Is there anyone that hasn't provide public testimony at
this time, would like to provide testimony at this time? Seeing none, then if there's no
objections, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay, Members, with no further business this evening...I just want to say
thank you very much, for those that are still here, for coming out and testifying. We really do
appreciate it. You know, it's your right to provide public testimony for the upcoming Fiscal
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Year 2013 Budget so thank you very much. The Budget and Finance Committee meeting at the
Paia Community Center is now adjourned. . . . (gavel).. .
ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

ADJOURN: 7:20 p.m.
APPROVED:
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